
 

To manage and conserve the natural and cultural resources of Texas and to provide hunting, fishing  

and outdoor recreation opportunities for the use and enjoyment of present and future generations. 

April 5, 2021 

 

Mr. Jayson Hudson     401 Coordinator 

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers   TCEQ, Mail Code 150 

Galveston District, Regulatory Branch  P.O. Box 13087 

P.O. Box 1229      Austin, TX 78711-3087 

Galveston, TX  77553-1229 

 

 

Re: Permit Application Number SWG-2012-00381 

 Space Exploration Technologies (SpaceX) 

 

 

Dear Mr. Hudson and 401 Coordinator: 

 

Texas Parks and Wildlife Department (TPWD) has reviewed the Public Notice 
(PN) dated March 4, 2021 for permit number SWG-2012-00381. SpaceX proposes 
to amend their authorized permit for the continued development of the Boca Chica 
Launch Site. The project site is located in special aquatic sites adjacent to Boca 

Chica Bay and the Gulf of Mexico and abuts public conservation lands on State 
Highway 4, in Boca Chica, Cameron County, Texas. 
 
According to the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA), SpaceX’s proposed 

launch operations include suborbital launches and orbital launches. The Proposed 
Action also includes pre-flight operations (tank tests, mission rehearsals, and static 
fire engine tests) and construction activities associated with launch activities, 
including expanding the solar farm, adding infrastructure and facilities at the 

vertical launch area (referred to as the VLA), parking lots, a liquid natural gas 
pretreatment system, a liquefier, a payload processing facility, and trenching and 
pull-offs along State Highway 4. At the VLA, SpaceX is proposing to construct a 
redundant launch pad and commodities, a redundant landing pad, two integration 

towers, tank structural test stands, a desalination plant, additional support 
buildings, and a power plant. 
 
The PN states that the continued development of the VLA includes the expansion 

and addition of test, orbital, and landing pads, integration towers, associated 
infrastructure, stormwater management features and vehicle parking. It does not 
appear that all of the proposed construction components have been identified in 
the US Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) PN and project plans. 

Recommendation:  USACE and Texas Commission on Environmental 
Quality (TCEQ) should verify that all project components within the scope 

of their respective evaluations have been identified on project plans and 
adequately described in project narratives.  
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The project site is located in a sparsely populated coastal area adjacent to the Gulf 

of Mexico and ecologically unique public lands owned and/or managed by TPWD 

and U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) as the Boca Chica Unit of the Lower 

Rio Grande Valley National Wildlife Refuge (LRGVNWR). The area is 

characterized by marsh and barrier island plant communities, shallow open water, 

algal flats, and unvegetated tidal flats. These shallows provide critical habitat to 

shorebirds, portions of which have been federally designated as piping plover 

habitat. Uplands consist of low, newly-forming sand dunes with their anchoring 

vegetation amidst bare sand flats. Submerged lands are fringed with black 

mangroves and vegetated with seagrasses. Small, ecologically unique clay hills, 

known as "lomas," support a diverse group of rare plants and terrestrial wildlife 

including the endangered ocelot and jagarundi. These conservation lands form part 

of the wildlife corridor which links the LRGVNWR to the Laguna Atascosa 

National Wildlife Refuge to the north. 

 

According to the PN, construction of the proposed expansion to the launch area 

would permanently impact 10.94 acres of tidal and/or algal flats, 5.94 acres of 

estuarine wetlands, and 0.28 acres of non-tidal wetlands. While the proposed 

avoidance and minimization measures focus on the parking lot, the PN states that 

there may be additional opportunities to reduce wetland impacts as the site design 

is refined. Based on the information provided, the applicant has not adequately 

demonstrated that the proposed action is the least environmentally damaging 

practical alternative, that impacts have been avoided and minimized to the extent 

practicable, or that unavoidable impacts would be successfully offset through 

compensatory mitigation.  

 

Recommendation: The applicant should address these concerns by 

developing an alternatives analysis in accordance with the 404(b)1 

Guidelines, considering additional opportunities to avoid and minimize 

impacts to the extent practicable for all aspects of the project, developing a 

permittee-responsible compensatory mitigation project in accordance with 

33 CFR 332, including developing a permittee-responsible mitigation plan 

that contains all of the mitigation plan descriptions detailed in paragraphs 2 

through 4 in 33 CFR 332.4(c)(2)-(4)(objectives; site selection; site 

protection instrument).  

 

TPWD has had a cursory-level discussion with SpaceX about the proposed 

impacts and SpaceX seemed amenable to our recommendation to 

participate in an inter-agency meeting, such as a Joint Evaluation Meeting. 

Such meetings have the potential to result in a better understanding of 

agency concerns as well as project constraints in an effort to avoid and 

minimize impacts where practical and to provide adequate compensation 

for those impacts which are unavoidable. 
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Project plans identify aquatic resource impacts in terms of habitat type and acreage 

for each major component of the proposed project but do not identify or quantify 

which areas of the project site are being avoided. Cross-sections provided in the 

project plans do not provide adequate detail to spatially visualize each component 

in terms of height and/or elevation. In addition, the quantities and sources of fill 

material required to complete each component of the revised project are not 

described.  Without this level of detail, TPWD is unable to fully assess the potential 

effects of the proposed project on fish and wildlife resources.  

 

Recommendation: Proposed project plans should be revised to provide 

more detailed cross-sectional views, information about the sources and 

quantities of fill material that will be required to complete each component 

of the proposed project, and quantify and describe areas of the project site 

which are being avoided. 

 

Sheet 8 of 8 of the project plans states that the 4:1 side slopes of the project site will 

be vegetated with native plant species. We are also aware of recent inquiries made 

with regard to vegetating the existing side slopes to address concerns for ongoing 

erosion at the project site. 

 

Recommendation:  For recommended seed mixes and potential seed 

sources, please contact Mr. Russell Hooten, Wildlife Habitat Assessment 

Program Biologist, by email at Russell.Hooten@tpwd.texas.gov or by 

phone at (361) 825-3240. 

 

TPWD has concern for significant secondary and cumulative impacts to cultural 

resources and fish and wildlife resources, including jurisdictional special aquatic 

sites, resulting from current operations at the project site. Tidal and algal flats 

provide important feeding and nesting habitat to shorebirds in general, and critically 

important feeding habitat to short-legged shorebirds, such as plovers. Snowy plover 

nests have been documented within the vicinity of the parking lot.  

 

From December 9, 2020 to March 3, 2021 alone, three suborbital test flights (SN8, 

SN9 and SN10) resulted in anomalies/explosions with debris landing in special 

aquatic sites and cultural sites located on TPWD-owned property located north of 

the project site. Activities associated with the subsequent site investigations and the 

removal of hazardous and non-hazardous materials and debris have resulted in 

rutting, trampling, and compaction of algal flats and tidal flats as well as rutting 

and denuding of native coastal prairie and Tamualipan thornscrub communities 

from the use of all-terrain vehicles, heavy equipment, drag lines, and foot traffic. 

Based on these and previous anomalies, fires, and incidents which have occurred 

as a result of the permitted projects, TPWD has reason to believe that these 

secondary and cumulative impacts will increase in both frequency and magnitude 

as a result of the proposed project. 
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Recommendation:  USACE and TCEQ should consider secondary effects 

of the proposed project on adjacent aquatic resources that would result as a 

consequence of the proposed action as well as the cumulative effects of past, 

present and foreseeable future projects in their respective evaluations of the 

proposed project. 

 
By letter dated January 27, 2021 (see attachment), TPWD provided scoping 

comments to the FAA for the preparation of a Draft Environmental Assessment 
for the proposed Starship/Super Heavy Launch Operations from the Boca Chica 
Launch Site in Cameron County, Texas. In addition to comments and information 
provided herein TPWD requests that these scoping comments be considered, to 

the extent they are applicable, in USACE’s and TCEQ’s respective evaluations of 
the proposed action.  
 
TPWD appreciates the opportunity to provide comments and looks forward to 

participating in a Joint Evaluation Meeting, interagency site visit, or similar forum 
to gain a better understanding of the project and to provide recommendations 
which, when implemented, avoid and minimize impacts to fish and wildlife 
resources and cultural resources. Questions can be directed to Mrs. Liana Garcia 

or Mr. Willy Cupit (956-350-4491) in Brownsville or Mrs. Leslie Koza (361-825-
2329) in Corpus Christi. 

 

Sincerely, 

 
Dakus Geeslin 

Chief, Science and Policy Resources Branch 

Coastal Fisheries Division 
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